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~ WASHINGTON, D.C, 20013-7127

YN REPLY REFER TO: . ° T A m |5 m

The Director of the Natlonal Park Service is pleased to inform you that the followmg properties have
been entered in the National Register of Historic Places beginning November 3, 1985 and endmg
November 9 1985, For further mformatlon call (202) 343-9552 :

f“f’.

”5 STATE,Countx,Vicinity,Prerrty,Address,(Dete Listed)

- CALIFORNIA, Humboldt Count;yJ Bald Ihlls Archeolorrlcal District Extension (Bounda ary Inerease)

~ (11/04/85)
CALIFORNIA, Marin County, Inverness vncmlty, Point Reyes Lifeboat Rescue Statnon-1927 Drake's
Bay, Point Reyes National Seashore (11/07/85) -
CALIFORNIA, Orange County, Santa Ana, Harmon-MecNeil House, 322 E. Chestnut St. (11/07/85)

- CALIFORNIA Shasta County, Tower House-Soo—Yeh Choo- us 11/04/85) -

COLORADO, Pueblo County, Pueblo, Barndollar-—Gann House, 1906 Court St. (11/07/8.:)
COLORADO, Pueble Countg, Pueblo, Black Dr. John A., House Complex 102 W. Pitkin Ave.

* (11/07/85) -
: COLORADO, Pueblo County, Pueblo, Rice Ward House 1825 Grand Ave. (11/07/85)
'COLORADO, Pueblo County, Pueblo, TooEe-Nuckolls House, 38 Carhle PL (11/07/85)

'\CONNECTICUT Fairfield County, Norwalk vxcnmty, South Main and Washm ton Streets Historic
Distriet (Boundary lncrease) 11--15 through 54--60 South Main St. (1I708?85§

':"FLORIDA Santa Rosa County, Thomas Creek Archaeological District (11/04/85)

(KENTUCKY, Scott County, Georgetown, West Main Street Historie District, 217--600 W, Main St.
11/05/85) ¢

LOUISIANA, East Baton Rouge Parish, Baton Rouge, Main Street Historic District, 442--660 Main St.
(11/07/85)
LOUISIANA, Terrebonne Parish, Thibodaux vicinity, Ducros Plantation House, LA 20 {11/07/85)

MASSACHUSETTS, Hamshire County, Northampton, Building at 8--22 Graves Avenue, 8--22 Graves
Ave. (11/07/85)

MASSACHUSETTS, Worcester County, Worcester, Richmond, Willard, Apartment Block (Worcester
MRA), 43 Austin St. (11/07/85)

(R:A/SS;}CP)iUSETTS Worcester Countx, Worcester, Russell (The) (Woreester MRA), 49 Austin St.

. (11/07/85

o ;VIINNESO)TA St. Louis County, Duluth, Duluth State Normal School Hlstonc Distriet, E. Fifth St.
-~ {11/08/85 .

MIS(SISSIPPI )Leflore County, Greenwood Building at 308 Lamar Street {Greenwood MRA), 308 Lamar

St. (11/04/85
MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Building at 312 George Street (Greenwood MRA), 312 George

f-ﬁt (11/04/8.))

~ +SSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Building at 710 South Boulevard (Greenwood MRA), 710

South Boulevard (11/04/85)




7 MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Central Commercial and Railroad Historie District

~ (Greenwood MRAJ, Carroliton Ave., Church, Georgé, Howard, Johnson, Lamar, Main, Pear, Walthall,
Washington, and Wright Sts, (11/04/85)

MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, First Methodist Church of Greenwood (Greenwood MRA),
310 W. Washington St. (11/04/85)
MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Greenwood High School (Greenwood MRA), 400 Cotton St.
(11/04/85)

MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Rosemary-Humphreys House (Greenwood MRA), 1440 Grand
Bivd. (11/04/85) .
(MISSISSIP)PI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Southworth House (Greenwood MRA), 1108 Mississippi Ave.
11/04/85

MISSISSIPPI, Leflore County, Greenwood, Wesley Memorial Methodist Episcopal Church (Greenwood
MRA), 800 ioward St. (11/04/85)

NEW HAMPSHIRE, Belknap County, Barnstead, Foss, Oscar, Memorial Library, Main St. (11/07/85)
NEW HAMPSHIRE, Grafton County, Bath, Brick Store, Main St. (11/07/85)

NEW HAMPSIIRE, Grafton County, Enfield, Hewitt House, US 4 (11/07/85)

NEW HAMPSHIRE, Hillsborough County, Manchester, Hoyt Shoe Factory, 477 Silver St. & 170 Lincoln
St. (11/07/85)

NEW HAMPSHIRE, Hillsborough County, Manchester, Kimball Brothers Shoe Factory, 335 Cypress St.
(11/07/85) T

NEW HAMPSHIRE, Merrimack County, Concord, Millville School, 2 Fiske Rd. (11/07/85)

NEW JERSEY, Bergen County, New Milford, Demarest--Bloomer House, 147 River Edge Ave.
(11/07/85)

NEW YORK, Suffolk County, Huntington, Kennan, A. P. W., House {Huntington Town MRA), Sydney
Rd. (11/06/85)

NEW YORK, )S_qi_’?t;qlk County, Huntington, Qakley, John, House (Huntington Town MRA), Sweet Hollow
Rd. (11/06/85)
NEW YORK, Suffolk County, Huntington, Old First Church (Huntington Town MRA), 126 Main St.
(11/06/85)

NORTH DAKOTA, Oliver County, Cross Ranch Archeological District (11/04/85)

OKLAHOMA, Garvin County, Pauls Valley, Garvin County Courthouse (County Courthouses of
Oklahoma TR), Courthouse Sq. & Grant Ave. (11/08/85)

OREGON, Multnomah County, Portland, Coleman-3cott House, 2110 NE Sixteenth Ave. (11/08/85)
OREGON, Multnomah County, Portland, Pallay Building, 231--239 NW Third Ave. (11/08/85)
TENNESSEE, Bedford County, Normandy, Normandy Historic District, Roughly bounded by Maple &
Poplar Sts., Tullahoma Rd., College St., & Old Manchester Rd, (11/07/85)

TENNESSEE, Knox County, Knoxville vicinity, Boyd--Harvey House, Harvey Rd. (11/07/85)
TENNESSEE, Encoln County, Petersburg, Petersburg Historie Distriet, Irregular pattern along High,
Russell, College, Church, Railroad, Town, Water, and Oak Sts. (11/07/85)

TENNESSEE, Marshall County, Verona, Verona Methodist Episcopal Church South, Verona-Berlin Rd.
(11/07/85)
TENNESSEE, Putnam _County, Cookeville, Cookeville Railroad Depot, Broad & Cedar Sts. (11/07/85)




’\TENNESSEE, Putnam County, Cookeville, Henderson Hsall, Dixie Ave., Tennessee Technological

University (11/07/85)
TENNESSEE, Sullivan County, Bristol, Shelby Street Station Post Office, 620 Shelby St. (11/07/85)

TEXAS, Harris County, Houston, Cohn, Arthur B., House, 1711 Rusk Ave. (11/07/85)
TEXAS, Willacy County, Lyford, Old Lyford High School, High School Cirele (11/07/85)

VERMONT, Addison County, Starksboro Village, Starksboro Village Meeting House, VT 116 (11/07/83)
VERMONT, Addison County, Starksboro, South Starksboro Friends Meeting House and Cemetery, Dan
Sargent Rd. {11/07/85)

VIRGINIA, Bedford County, Forest vicinity, St. Stephen's Episcopal Church, VA 663 (11/07/85)
VIRGINIA, Richmond {Independent City), Home For Confederate Women, 301 N, Sheppard St.
{11/07/85)

VIRGINIA, Suffolk (Independent City), Building at 216 Bank Street, 216 Bank St, (11/07/85)

The following properties were also entered in the National Register but were excluded from a previous
notice:

CALIFORNIA, imperial County, Winterhaven Anthrogomgrth and Bowknot, L-9 (Earth Fizures of
California~Arizona Colorado River Basin TR), (10/25/85

CALIFORNIA, San Bernardino County, Site D-4 (Zarth Figures of California-Arizona Colorado River
Basin TR), (10/25/85) 7

CALIFORNIA, San Bernardine_County, Site E-21 (Earth Figures of California-Arizona Colorado River
Basin TR), (10/25/85)

CALIFORNIA, San Diego County, Anza Borrego-Palo Verde Site, 5-2 (Earth Figures of California-
Arizona Colorado River Basin TR), (10/25/85)

CALIFORNIA, San Diego County, Anza Borrego-8in Nombre, S-4 (Earth Figures of California-Arizona
Colorado River Basin TR), (10/25/85)

CALIFORNIA, San Diego County, Anza Borrego-Split Mountain Site, 8-3 (Earth Figures of California-
Arizona Colorado River Basin TR), (10/25/85)

JFLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Adams, Carl G., House (Country Club Estates TR), 31 Hunting

Lodge (11/017/85)
FLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Clune Building (Country Club Estates TR), 45 Curtiss Parkway
(11/01/85)

FLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Curtiss, Lua, House 1 (Country Club Estates TR), 85 Decr Run
(11/01/85)
FLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Curtiss, Lua, House II (Country Club Estates TR), 150 Hunting
Lodge (11/01/85)

FLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Hequembouryg House (Country Club Estates TR), 851 Hunting
Lodge (11/01/85)
FLORIDA, Dade County, Miami Springs, Osceola Apartment Hotel (Country Club Estates TR), 200
Azure Way (11701/85 -

Multiple Resource Areas are identified by MRA
Thematic Resources are identified by TR
NHL designates a National Historic Landmark

.



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 DEPARTMENTS OF:

Economic Development 828-3221
Housing & Comnmunity Affairs 828-3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211
DIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3231

Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY
January 23, 1986

Starksboro Village Meeting House
Society
c¢/o Bertha Hanson, Corresponding Secretary
RD#2, Box 283
Bristol, VT 05443

Re: Starksboro Village Meeting House

Dear Ms. Hanson:

The Division for Historic Preservation is pleased to inform you
that the Starksboro Village Meeting House has been officially

entered on the National Register of Historic Places.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination, please
feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,
DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION
o e
Zet
Eric Gilbertson
Director/Deputy State Historic

Preservation Officer

EG/tmb




STATE OF YERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 DEPARTMENTS OF:
Economic Development 828-3221 )
Huousing & Community Affairs 828-3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211
DIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3231

Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermone Lifc Magazine 828-3241

JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY
January 23, 1986

Mr. William Coon, Chairman
Board of Selectmen

Town of Starksboro
Starksboro, VT 05487

Re: Starksboro Village Meeting House
Dear Mr. Coon:

On August 9, 1985, the Division sent you a letter notifying you that

the Starksboro Village Meeting House was being considered for nomination
to the National Register of Historic Places. We are pleased to inform
you that the Starksboro Village Meeting House has now been officially
entered on the National Register.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination, please
feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTORKC PRESERVATION
S0k =

Eric Gilbertson

Director/Deputy State Historic

Preservation Officer

EG/tmb



STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 DEPARTMENTS OF:

Economic Development 828-3221
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 DIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3231

Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY

Januaxy 23, 1986

Mr. Michael H. Preziose, Executive Director
Addison County Regional Planning
and Development Commission
9 Washington Street
Middlebury, VT 05753

Re: Starksboro Village Meeting House
Dear Mr. Preziose:

On August 9, 1985, the Division sent you a letter notifying you that

the Starksboro Village Meeting House was being considered for momination
to the National Register of Historic Places. We are nleased to inform
you that the Starksboro Village Meeting House has now been off1c1a11y
entered on the National Register.

If you desire further information regarding this nomination, please
feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

‘DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION
Eric Gilbertson

Director/Denuty State Historic

Preservation Officer

EG/tmb




STATE OF VERMONT

AGI:'NCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 DEPARTMENTS OF;
. Econumic Develapmient A38-3331
Housing & €Community Affairs 828:-3317

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 DIVISIONS OF:

. Administration 828-3231
JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY Historic Preservation 828-3226

Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Lifc Magazine 828-3241

September 30, 1985

Ms, Carol -Shull, Chief of Registration
National Register of Historic Places
National Park Service

Department of.the Interior

Washington, D.C. 20240 - v e

Dear Ms. Shull:

Enclosed please find the National Register nomination forms for
the following:

South Starksboro Friends Meeting House
and Cemetery
Starksboro, Addison County, Vermont

Starksboro Village Meeting House
Starksboro, Addison County, Vermont

These properties are being submitted under the Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended in 1980, for inclusion in the National

. Register of Historic Places.

No comments were received concerning the nominations.
Sincerely,
DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

/ _/”)'/l /é

Eflc G11bertson
Director/Deputy State Hlstorlc
Preservation Officer

EG/NEB/tb
Enclosure




STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 o DEPARTMENTS OF:

Edonomic Development 828-3221
Housing & Comnmunity Affairs 828.3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211
DiVISIONS OF:

) . : ’ Administration 828-3231
] JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY ‘ ‘ Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Lifc Magazine 828-3241

October 15, 1985

Starksboro Village Meeting House Society
c/o Bertha Hanson, Correspond1ng Secretary
RD #2, Box 283

Br15tol VT 05443

Re: Starksboro Village Meeting House -
Dear Ms. Hanson:
We are pleased to inform you that Starksboro Village Meeting House
has been submitted to the National Park Service for consideration
for entry in the National Register of Historic Places. Notificat-
~ ion of acceptance of the property will follow.
Please feel free to contact us if any further irformation is desired.
Sincerely,
DIVISION FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION

é S Aﬂ[ E’/L/‘%—_—-
Eric Gilbertson
Director/Deputy State Hlstorlc

Preservation Officer

EG/tmb:
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STATE OF VERMONT

" AGENCY OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY AUFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 " DEPARTMENTS OF:
. ' ‘ Bennumie Devolopment 828.3223
Housing & Community Affairs 828.-3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3211 DIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3231

Historic Preservation 828-3226
Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Life Magazine 828-3241

JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY
October 15, 1985

Chairman

Board of Selectmen
Town of Starksboro
Starksbore, VT 05487

Re: Starksboro Vlllage Meetlng House

Dear Mr. Chairman:

We are pleased to inform you that.Starksboro Village Meeting House
has been submitted to the National Park Service for consideration
for entry in the National Register of Historic Places. Notificat-
ion of acceptance of the property will follow.

Please feel free to contact us if any further information is desired.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR lefiflq’/ﬁtSE?VATION

'Erlc Gllbertson
Director/Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

EG/tmb
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STATE OF VERMONT

AGENCY O DEVELOPMENT AND C()A-l!\”lUNl'l_'Y AFFAIRS

MONTPELIER, VERMONT 05602 ‘ - ’ ~ DEPARTMENTS OF:
- : ' ‘ Economic Development 828-3221 -
Housing & Community Affairs 828-3217

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY (802) 828-3_.21'1 BIVISIONS OF:

Administration 828-3231

JAMES A. GUEST, SECRETARY o ‘ . “Historic Preservation 828-3226

. Vermont Travel Division 828-3236
Vermont Lifc Magazine 828-3241

October 15, 1985

Mr. Michael H. Preziose, Executive Director

Addison County Regional Planning and Development
Commission - :

9 Washington- Street

Middlebury, VT 05753

Re: Starksboro Village Meeting House
Dear Mr. Preziose:

We are pleased to inform you that Starksboro Village Meeting House
has been submitted to the National Park Service for consideration

for entry in the National Register of Historic Places. Notificat-

ion of acceptance of the property will follow.
Please feel free to contact us if any further information is desired.

Sincerely,

DIVISION FOR HISTQRIC PRESERVATION
R HIS ‘

¢ Gilbertson '

Director/Deputy State Historic

Preservation Qfficer

EG/tmb




NPS " orm 10.900 OMB No. 1024~-0018
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inited States Denarlment of the Interior

Mational Park Sorvice | For NPS use only
Motional Negister of Hlistoric Places received
ryrantery—-fomination Form date entered

%-q instructicns in low to Complete National Register Forms
i vpe all entries—complete applicable sectiens

et T e

i. Plome

histmic  Starksboro Village Meeting House

and or common Starksboro Village Meeting House

2. Location

street & number Verr_ﬁ_gnt ROU_tE]Llib N/A not 1o publication

city, town Starksboro Village

%vicinlty of

Addison

state Vermont code U county code 001
3. Classification
Category OwnerShip Status Present Use

district ___ public X occupied ____ agriculture —__ museum
_X_building(s) _X_ private - unoccupied ____ commiercial ___ park
— . structure ___ both ' . work in progress - educational private residence
—_.. site Public Acquisition Accessible —___entertainment & religious
,,,,, object N/Ain process X¥__ yes:restricted - government —__ scientific

- being considered ——. yes:unrestricted . industrial . — transportation
—_no — military _X_other: community

4. Owner of Property

name Starksboro Village Meeting House Soclety

street & number C/0 Bertha Hanson, Recor—ding Secretary ~ RD 2, Box 283

city, town Bristol ' N/ Avicinity of state Vermont 05443
5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Starksboro Town Clerk's Office
street & number N/A
city, town Starksboro state  Vermont 05487

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Vermont Fistoric Sites and
title Structures Survevy has this property been determined eligibie? _ _yes X  no

date June 19, 1975 ' —_federal _X state ___county _._. local

depository for survey records Vermont Division for Historic Preservation

city, town Montpelier state Vermont




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

— . excellent _._ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X _original site

_X good ___.ruins X_ altered ... moved date . . . .
e tair —.— unexposed

Describe the present and original {if known) physical abpearance

The Starksbero Village Meeting House is a rectangular three by
three bay une story tall structure on a high fieldstone basemrent
with its main entrance in the center of the gable front. Located in
the heart of Starksboro Village on the west side of Vermont Route
116, it is distinguished on the exterior by pointed arch windows
and a two stage belfry crowned with simple cresting, and inside .by
its original furnishings, grained woodwork, and a large Kkerosene

lamp chandelier, It stands as a good example of the Gothic Revival styl:

The Meeting House is located in the middle of its 82 1/2 foot
wide and 132 foot deep lot on the west side of Vermont Route 116
in Starksboro Village. It is the only building on the lot. It
is a one story high rectanguiar” clapboard sided wood frame structure
on a tall fieldstone basement wall, and is three bays wide and
three deep with the main entrance in the center of the front (east)
gable end. The moderately pitched roof has returned eaves and is
covered with asphalt shingles. Rising from the front roof peak.
near the northwest corner of the building is a two stage belfry,
also sided with clapboards. A brick chimney emerges from close to
the rear (west) roof peak near the northwest corner of the building..
The tall pointed arch Gothic Revival style windows of the first
floor are made up of two narrow vertical sashes (the top sash has
twelve panes, the bottom has nine regular panes with six smaller
panes in a geometrical pattern at the bottom) topped by a fixed
pointed arch sash with curved intersecting muntins. The wide
basement windows have twelve (two rows of six panes) over twelve
sash. All corner boards on the building are plain. A simple Greek
Revival style molding enriches the cornice line of the gable ends
and the eave sides, wrapping around the building cormers under the
returned eaves to give the effect of a capital. . '

In the center of the main facade (the east gable end) of the
Meeting House is its formal entrance. Double doors, each with four
panels edged by simple Greek Revival style molding, are framed by
a surround derived from the Federal style with entry pilasters and

" an entablature. Above the door is a fixed pointed arch sash, and
a similar sash is found in the gable peak. Centered on the roof
peak above the door is a two stage belfry, each side containing a
fixed pointed arch louvered shutter. The top stage of the belfry
is crowned by a simple cresting with pinnacles at the corners.

On the south eaveside wall, the three basement windows are
.placed directly under the sanctuary windows. The rear (west) gable
end has two evenly spaced basement windows, but no openings on the
first floor. Emerging from the right of the basement wall is a
-modern exhaust pipe. The north eaveside basement wall has five
regularly spaced openings--three windows separated by two deeply
recessed doors. Both doors have four beveled edged panels, and the
one to the left retains its original hardware. '

(See Continuation Sheet)




NPS Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
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United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet Description item number 7 Page 1

In 1868, louvered shutters were made for the eight large first
floor windows and two small pointed arch sashes on the front facade.
They were screwed fast over the windows instead of being hung by
hinges to "obviate the danger of blowing open and breaking the
‘blinds & glass."l Installing them required removing "beadwork,"
probably thin strips of molding edging the window surrounds in
imitation of columns in Gothic style vaulting. These shutters were
removed sometime between 1911 and 1919 (they remain in storage
today) when the clear glass in the windows was replaced by
opalescent stained glass. Much of the original glass in the
basement windows remains intact-however. The wood shingle roof was
replaced probably around 1957 by the present dark asphalt shingle

"~ roof. About that time the top stage of the belfry and cresting
were removed because of their deteriorated condition. They were
recreated and installed in 1976. The old wooden steps leading up
to the front door were replaced by cement steps, and in 1972 a
fieldstone retaining wall was erected around these steps and across
the front width of the building.

The first floor of the interior 1s divided into two spaces--
an entry hall across the width of the building and the sanctuary
with a balcony above the hall., The walls are lined by a wainscot
made of two very wide horizontal boards topped with a thin simple
molding, and above the wainscot the plastered walls are papered.
All interior doors have beveled edged panels. The inside of the main
double doors, two doors from the hallway to sanctuary, pew doors,
and pew ends have their original graining, while almost all other
woodwork is painted in a solid color. All floors, wide pine boards,
are original.

In the hall, the short north and south walls each have two
doors--narrow with two panels closest to the east wall and wider
with four panels near the west wall. The left door on the north
‘wall has its original latch and leads to the balcony stairs. The
right door is for a closet. On the south wall, the left door opens

- onto the basement stairway, which was installed in 1911 when the
Town of Starksboro moved from its basement meeting room to the
new Town Hall. The right door is fastened shut, the balcony stairs
on this side having been removed after 1911.In the middle of the
west hall wall is a small lidded storage cupboard made out of
twelve of the original sanctuary pew doors. A horizontal panel
(another pew door) in the back wall of the box opens into the
sanctuary. This box was used to store firewood for the stove that
once heated the church. On each side of the box is a door with
six panels and original hardware which leads into the sanctuary.

The rectangular sanctuary retains many of its original features.
The north and south walls are lined with twelve rows of pews facing

T "Tetter, W.S. Howdin to George W. Ferguson, July 28, 1868.
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Continuation sheet Description ~ ltem number 7 _ Page 2

west, with nine rows of double width pews up the middle of the
church. 1In the southwest corner are four short pews facing north
and the side of the altar area. Each pew seat is made cof one wide
board, while the back has two beveled edged panels and is topped by
a simple rounded molding. The pew doors (some of which were removed
earlier in this century) and the pew ends have two beveled edged
panels. The pew door numbers are painted in gold on a small square
black painted field in the middle of the top panel of each pew end.

The altar or pulpit area, across the west wall, is raised about
nine inches from the main floor-and is set off by a simple altar
rail with thin square balusters. The smaller altar and pulpit
platform, raised about one and a half feet higher, has a Greek
Revival style baseboard molding and cornice under the floor lip. It
is reached by inset steps on its north and south sides. Two piers,
about one and a half feet wide, project from the west wall on each

side of the altar area. The one to the right contains the present
chimney stack.

The pointed arch windows of the north and south walls are filled
with panes of opalescent stainedglass that were given in the 1910s
in memory of deceased members of the congregation, many of whom
were descendants of Starksboro's earliest settlers. Their names
are painted in black on the bottom glass pane in each of the lower
sashes. The boards that form each window reveal extend out about
one inch beyond the wall surface and have rounded edges. They are
framed by two small half-round strips of molding with a small
rounded wooden impost block at the spring of the arch--this simple
surround a carpenter's version of Gothic vaulting.

Hanging from the center of the ceiling is a large kerosene lamp
chandelier installed in 1884, perhaps alsc when the ceiling was
covered with the present narrow beaded edged boards. The chandelier
is made up of a circle of fourteen glass kerosene lamps, suspended
by a cord (inside a thin tube) under a fourteen sided mirrored
reflector. The lamp circle, which can be lowered for lighting, is

held in place by a bucket of stones hanging in the attic at the
other end.of the cord.

Just in front of the back (east) wall between the sanctuary
and hallway are two evenly spaced tapered eight sided posts that
reach to the ceiling. On top of this wall is the solid paneled
three bay wide balcony railing. The balcony floor, rough wide
pine boards, has two levels with a built-in pew on the upper level.
A trap-door in the ceiling to the rear leads to the attic where
the massive post and beam trusses that support the roof and belfry
can be seen. The belfry, where the church bell that was cast in
Troy, New York hangs, is reached through another trap-door.
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The basement, originally one large room finished by the Town of
Starksboro for use as the "Town Room'" and reached only through the
doors on the north side, was divided into two rooms sometime after
1911 when the present Town Hall was ready for occupancy. All the
basement walls are plastered. The original pine floors still remain.

Each side of the deep angled w1ndow reveals are paneled with one
wide pine board.

The front (east) basement room, now used for the town library,
has a straight run of stairs (installed in 1911) with simple square
balusters and a square newel post along its wouth wall... In the .
middle of the room are two evenly spaced eight-sided posts, located
directly under the posts in the sanctuary. The main (rear, west)
room is reached through a four paneled door. Along the outer north
and west walls are simple wooden built-in benches, original to the
Town Room. The southwest corner of the room was later partitioned
off for a small kitchen, and in the 1960s or 1970s a small restroom

was added. A small room.centered in the middle of the east wall
houses the furnace.




8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
prehistoric archeology-prehistoric . community planning . landscape architecture . ... religion
... 1400-1499 . - archeology-historic . .__conservation oo law .. science
...— 1500-1599 ___ agriculture .. economics . . literature . - sculpture
_ . 1600-1699 X  architecture ..-.. education .. ... military ... Social/
. 1700-1799 art - engineering - .. Mmusic - humanitarian
X 1800-18998 commerce . . .exploration/settlement . .. philosophy ——- theater
__ 1900~ ___ . communications .. industry . . —-- politics/igovernment ____ transportation
_invention ST —__ other (specify)
Specific dates 1838-1840 Builder/Architect Unknown

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

, The Starksboro Village Meeting House, which was built between
1838 and 1840 as a Union Church for three denominations with a
meeting room for the Town of Starksboro in the basement, is a very
good and well preserved example of the traditional meeting house :
form popular in small rural Vermont towns through much of the 1800s.
It is distinguished from its more common Greek Revival style
‘contemporariées by its Gothic Revival style pointed arched windows

and pinnacled creésting (feconstructéd) atop the belfry. Its interior
is also well preserved with most of "the ériginal furnishings -
remaining intact. The Meeting House 'is d4lséd ‘an éxcellérnt example

of a Union Church, a co-operative building effort by several congre-
gations in a town, and common in Vermont in the first half of the
19th century. Located in the heart of the small village of '
Starksboro, it was built during the town's peak period of growth

and is the most architecturally distinguished building in the wvillage.

, On May 8, 1838, the Starksboro Village Meeting House Society
was deeded two adjacent parcels of land in the center of Starksboro
Village upon which™ théy had already begun building their meeting
house. The Society was a union of three of the five religious
denominations in the town: the Methodist Episcopal congregation,
formed in 1798, two years after the Town of Starksboro was organized;
the Free Will Baptists, organized in 1821; and a group called the
Christian Church. Although the Society of Friends had built a
meeting house in the northern part of Starksboro in 1812 and one

in South Starksboro in 1826, these three congregations did not have
permanent churches and met instead in the homes of their members.
During the 1830s, the need to build a Union Church became clear.
The town's population had been increasing, and in 1840

‘would reach 1263. Starksboro Village was also developing as a
milling center with a forge, fulling mill, saw mill, two trip

hammer shops, and still standing a tavern, store, and a number of
houses. '

At the annual Starksboro Town Meeting held March 6, 1838,
voters voted to '"raise a tax of Four Hundred dollars for the
purpose of furnishing a town room in the basement story of a meeting-

house contemglated to be built in the village in said Town of
Starksboro."

lrirst Book of Minutes, Starksboro Annual Meeting, p. 164.
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Up until that time, town meetings were generally held in the

village schoolhouse. Construction began scmetime between March 6
and May 8, 1838 when the deed was received, and enough work had been
done on the Meeting House for a town meeting on April 4, 1839 to

be held in the basement town room. Construction was completed in
1840 at a total cost of $2400.

The meeting house, although similar to other Gothic Revival
style churches in Vermont of the same period, examples including
those designed or influenced by the work of master builder John
Cain of Rutland, it is the only one of its type to be found in
the region of Starksboro and its surrounding neighbor towns. This
indicates the building committee's awareness of architectural
trends and the newly emerging Gothic Revival style in Vermont.
Although the interior has less Gothic Revival style details than
the exterior, it is also distinguished for the high quality
craftsmanship of its furnishings and the grained woodwork. It
is not known who designed or built the church. The interior pews
were built by George W. Ferguson, who had a casket and carriage
making shop across the street, and Mark G. Hanson. For many years
these pews were bought and sold like real estate.

Until the 1860s, the Methodist Episcopals used the church one
half the time, the Free Will Baptists one quarter of the time,
and the Christian Church one quarter of the time. In 1868, the
Baptists built their own church, a large two story Greek Revival
style building across the street. The Christian Church eventually
lost its membership, thus leaving the Methodists the sole
occupants of the sanctuary. Their membership fell steadily from
its high of 228 in 1842 to 8 by 1914. 1In 1909, the Town of
Starksboro appointed a committee to look into buying the Meeting
House as more space was needed for town and community affairs,
but the next year decided to appropriate $4000 to buy a lot and
build a Town Hall. Despite the low membership, the Methodist
congregation made a few changes in the building after the Town
left., Stairs were installed for access to the basement from the
first floor, and the original clear glass window panes were
replaced with opalescent glass given in memory of deceased members.
One is dedicated to Rev. Elijah Hedding, the seventh bishop of
the Methodist Episcopal Church in America, who as a young man came to
Starksboro and was an early member of this congregation in town.
The membership slowly rose again, reaching 32 by 1919. 1In that
year, they voted to join in federation with the Baptists and form
a United Church. They met in the larger Baptist Church, leaving
the Meeting House empty. Since that time it has been used for
occasional services and for other community activities. The

(see Continuation Sheet)
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Meeting House Soclety was revitalized in 1957 and began much needed
maintenance and restoration work, much of it completed in 1976 in
honor of the nation's bicentennial celebration. Today the Meeting
House continues to serve the community and remains as the most
architecturally distinguished building in this small village.
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Child, Hamilton. Gazetteer and Business Directory of Addison

County, Vermont for 1881-82, Syracuse, NY: Journal Office,
1882,

First Book of Minutes, Starksboro Annual Meeting, on file at
Starksboro Town Clerk's Office.

Hanson, Bertha. "Elijah Hedding, D.D." Town of Starksboro,
Vermont Annual Report 1977, 1978.

Hanson, Bertha. "Village Meetirig House Opened for Services."
The Valley Voice. 16 July, 1975: 3.

Hemenway, Abby M., ed. Vermont Historical Gazetteer, vol. 1.
Burlington, Vermont: 1867.

Letter, W.S. Howdin to George W. Ferguson, July 28, 1869, in
Papers of the Starksboro Village Meeting House Society,
Starksboro, Vermont. ‘

Smith, H.P., ed. History of Addison County, Vermont. Syracuse,
NY: D. Mason & Co., 1886.
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10. Geogiaphical Rata
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Verbal boundary de.,miptlon anrl jusllhcatlon The nomlnated property is a rectangular lot
82 1/2 feet wide at the front and rear and 132 feet in depth, and is
the original lot assocjated with the building. Volume 5 of Deeds,
pp.. 419,420 (May 8, 1838), Town of Starksboro Land Records.

List all states and counties for properties overlappmg state or county boundaries
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11. | Form. Prepared By

Fe

nametitle Elsa Gilbertson, Historic Preservation Consultant

organizetion _ N/A e gme May 17,1985
street& number  RD i 2, Box 309“,;_.,,: _telephone. §802). 45372079 )
city or town | Bristol state Vermont 05443

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

-The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—_ national X state — local

As the designated State Historic Preservation. Officer for the.-National Hlstorlc Preservatlon Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
§65), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in.the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set fort ;the Nzgial Par Servlce .

eputy State Historic Preservation Otficer signature

titte Director, Vermont Division for Historic Preservation date September 30, 1985

For NPS use only ' - a1
I hereby certity that this property is included in the National Register o

date -

Keeper of the National Register

Attest: _ . date
Chiet of Registration
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Starksboro Village Meeting House

Starksboro, Vermont

Credit: Elsa Gilbertson

Date: April 1985

Negative filed at Vermont Division
or Historic Preservation

West side of Vermont Route 116 in
Starksboro Village, view looking
north, Town Hall in foreground.

Photograph 1







Starksboro Village Meeting House

Starksboro, Vermont

Credit: Elsa Gilbertson

Date: April 1985

Negative filed at Vermont Division
for Historic Preservation

Front (east) facade of Meeting
House ‘ ) '

Photograph 2
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Starksboro Village Meeting House

Starksboro, Vermont

Credit: Elsa Gilbertson

Date: April 1985

Ne%ative filed at Vermont Division
for Historic Preservation

View loéking northeast, rear (west)
facade and side (south) facade
of Meeting House,

Photograph 3
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Starksboro Village Meeting House

Starksboro, Vermont

Credit: David Ingraham

Date: April 1985

Negative filed at Vermont Division
for Historic Preservation

Interior, view from balcony looking
west to altar of Meeting House

Photograph 4




